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noependent Auditors Report

To the Members of Schloss Udaipur Private Limited

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

We have audited the financial statements of Schloss Udaipur Private Limited (the “Company”) which
comprise the balance sheet as at 31 March 2022, and the statement of profit and loss and statement of
cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of
significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
aforesaid financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (*Act’) in the
manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally
accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at 31 March 2022, and its loss and its cash
flows for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under
Section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those SAs are further described in the Auditors
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the
Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India
together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements under the
provisions of the Act and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in
accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion on the financial statements.

Other Information

The Company’s Management and Board of Directors are responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises the information included in the Company’s directors' report, but does not include
the financial statements and our auditor's report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any
form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If,
based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other
information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Management's and Board of Directors Responsibilities for the Financial Statements

The Company’s Management and Board of Directors are responsible for the matters stated in Section
134(5) of the Act with respect to the preparation of these financial statements that give a true and fair view
of the state of affairs, profit/ loss and cash flows of the Company in accordance with the accounting
principles generally accepted in India, including the Accounting Standards specified under Section 133 of
the Act. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with
the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting
frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; makingc{
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Schloss Udaipur Private Limited

judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance
of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and
completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial
statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud
or error.

in preparing the financial statements, the Management and Board of Directors are responsible for
assessing the Company's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related
to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the Board of Directors either
intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Board of Directors is also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an
audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate,
they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of
these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

* |dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting
a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may
involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

+  Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under Section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible
for expressing our opinion on whether the company has adequate internal financial controls with
reference to financial statements in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

+  Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by the Management and Board of Directors.

»  Conclude on the appropriateness of the Management and Board of Directors use of the going concern
basis of accounting in preparation of financial statements and, based on the audit evidence obtained,
whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt
on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty
exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions
are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events
or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

+ Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events
in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope
and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control
that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related
safeguards. :
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Schloss Udaipur Private Limited

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2020 (‘the Order”) issued by the Central
Government of India in terms of Section 143(11) of the Act, we give in the "Annexure A" a statement
on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable.

2 A. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

a. We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

b. In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so
far as it appears from our examination of those books.

c. The balance sheet, the statement of profit and loss and the statement of cash flows dealt with by
this Report are in agreement with the books of account.

d. In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Accounting Standards specified
under Section 133 of the Act.

e. Onthe basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 31 March 2022 taken
on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on 31 March 2022
from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164(2) of the Act.

f.  With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate
Report in “Annexure B”.

B. With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with Rule 11 of
the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our information and
according to the explanations given to us:

a. The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations as at 31 March 2022 on its financial
position in its financial statements - Refer Note 30 to the financial statements.

b. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which there
were any material foreseeable losses.

¢. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and
Protection Fund by the Company.

d (i) The management has represented that, to the best of it's knowledge and belief, as disclosed in
the Note 44 to the financial statements, no funds have been advanced or loaned or invested
(either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the
Company to or in any other persons or entities, including foreign entities (‘Intermediaries”), with
the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall:

+ directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner
whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or

- provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

(i) The management has represented that, to the best of it's knowledge and belief, as disclosed in
the Note 45 to the financial statements, no funds have been received by the Company from any
persons or entities, including foreign entities (‘Funding Parties”), with the understanding, whether
recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Company shall:

« directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner
whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Parties (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or

- provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

(iii) Based on the audit procedures performed that have been considered reasonable and appropriatg<,
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independent Auditor’s Report (Continued)
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in the circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that the
representations under sub-clause (i) and (i) above contain any material misstatement.

e. The Company has neither declared nor paid any dividend during the year.
C. With respect to the matter to be included in the Auditor's Report under Section 197(16) of the Act:

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is not a
public company. Accordingly, the provisions of Section 197 of the Act are not applicable to the
Company.

ForBSR & Co.LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm's Registration No.:101248W/W-100022

g H Zhest
Jaymin Sheth
Partner

Place: Mumbai Membership No.: 114583
Date: 29 September 2022 ICAI UDIN:22114583AWQDSK1892
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Annexure A to the Independent Auditor’s Report on the Financial Statements
of Schloss Udaipur Private Limited for the year ended 31 March 2022

(Referred to in paragraph 1 under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory
Requirements’ section of our report of even date)

(i) () (A) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including gquantitative

0

(ii) (@)

(iif)

(b)

©

(d

(e)

(b)

(@)

details and situation of Property, Plant and Equipment.
The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars of intangible assets.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, the Company has a regular programme of physical verification
of its Property, Plant and Equipment by which all property, plant and equipment are verified once
in three years. In accordance with this programme, all property, plant and equipment were
verified during the year 2020-21. In our opinion, this periodicity of physical verification is
reasonable having regard to the size of the Company and the nature of its assets. No
discrepancy was noticed on such verification.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, the title deeds of immovable properties (other than immovable
properties where the Company is the lessee and the leases agreements are duly executed in
favour of the lessee) disclosed in the financial statements are held in the name of the Company.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, the Company has not revalued its Property, Plant and Equipment
or intangible assets or both during the year.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, there are no proceedings initiated or pending against the
Company for holding any benami property under the Prohibition of Benami Property
Transactions Act, 1988 and rules made thereunder.

The inventory, has been physically verified by the management during the year. In our opinion,
the frequency of such verification is reasonable and procedures and coverage as followed by
management were appropriate. No discrepancies were noticed on verification between the
physical stocks and the book records that were more than 10% in the aggregate of each class
of inventory

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, the Company has been sanctioned working capital limits in
excess of five crore rupees, in aggregate, from banks or financial institutions on the basis of
security of current assets. In our opinion, the quarterly returns or statements filed by the
Company with such banks or financial institutions are in agreement with the books of account
of the Company.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, the Company has not made any investments in companies,
firms, limited liability partnership or any other parties. The Company has not provided any
guarantee or security to companies, firms, limited liability partnership or any other parties during
the year.The Company has granted unsecured loans and advances in the nature of loans to
employees, fellow subsidiaries and other parties during the year in respect of which the requisite
information is as below.

Based on the audit procedures carried on by us and as per the information and explanations
given to us the Company has provided loans and advances in the nature of loans to employees,
fellow subsidiaries and other parties as be|oW
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Annexure A to the Independent Auditor’'s Report on the Financial Statements
of Schloss Udaipur Private Limited for the year ended 31 March 2022
(Continued)

Rupees in millions

Particulars Advances in the Loans
nature of loans

Aggregate amount during the year

Fellow Subsidiaries 170.00 975.00
Employee Loans - 1.88
Others - 145.00

Balance outstanding as at balance sheet date
Fellow Subsidiaries

Employee Loans 71.83 700.00
Others - 0.09

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us and based on the audit procedures
conducted by us, in our opinion the terms and conditions of the grant of loans and advances in
the nature of loans provided during the year are, prima facie, not prejudicial to the interest of the
Company.

(c) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, loans given and advances in the nature of loans to fellow
subsidiaries and other parties is repayable on demand and in case of employee loans (as per
the policy of the Company loan is interest free) the schedule of repayment is stipulated. The
payment of principal and interest has been regular where applicable.

(d) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, there is no overdue amount for more than ninety days in respect
of loans given.

(e) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, there is no loan or advance in the nature of loan granted falling
due during the year, which has been renewed or extended or fresh loans granted to settle the
overdues of existing loans given to same parties.

)] According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, in our opinion the Company has not granted any loans or
advances in the nature of loans either repayable on demand or without specifying any terms or
period of repayment except for the following loans or advances in the nature of loans as stated
below:.

Rupees in millions

Particulars Related Parties

Aggregate of loans/advances in nature of loan

- Repayable on demand 1,290.00
Total 1,290.00
Percentage of loans/advances in nature of loan to the total loans 99.85%

(iv) In our opinion and according to the information and explanation given to us, the Company ha%
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Annexure A to the Independent Auditor’s Report on the Financial Statements
of Schloss Udaipur Private Limited for the year ended 31 March 2022
(Continued)

complied with the provisions of Section 185 of the Act is respect of loans covered by the said
section. The Company does not have any guarantee given or security provided to which Section
185 and 186 of the Act is applicable. According to the information and explanation given to us,
the provisions of Section 186 of the Act in respect of the loan given and advances in the nature
of loans, are not applicable to the Company, since it is covered as a Company engaged in
business of providing infrastructural facilities. According to the information and explanation given
to us the there is no investment made by the Company and accordingly Section 186 in respect
of investment is not applicable to the Company.

(v) The Company has not accepted any deposits or amounts which are deemed to be deposits from
the public. Accordingly, clause 3(v) of the Order is not applicable.

(vi) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Central Government has not
prescribed the maintenance of cost records under Section 148(1) of the Act for the services
provided by it. Accordingly, clause 3(vi) of the Order is not applicable.

(vii) (@) The Company does not have liability in respect of Service tax, Duty of excise and Sales tax
during the year since effective 1 July 2017, these statutory dues has been subsumed into GST
(Goods and Services Tax).

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, in our opinion amounts deducted / accrued in the books of
account in respect of undisputed statutory dues including Goods and Services Tax, Provident
Fund, Employees State Insurance, Income-Tax, Value added tax, Cess or other statutory dues
have been regularly deposited by the Company with the appropriate authorities.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, no undisputed amounts payable in respect of Goods and
Services Tax, Provident Fund, Employees State Insurance, Income-Tax, Value added tax, Cess
or other statutory dues were in arrears as at 31 March 2022 for a period of more than six months
from the date they became payable.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, statutory dues relating to Goods and Service Tax, Provident
Fund, Employees State Insurance, Income-Tax, Duty of Customs, Value added tax, Cess or
other statutory dues which have not been deposited on account of any dispute are as follows:

Name of the Nature of the | Rupees in | Period to which Forum where
statute dues millions* the amount dispute is
relates pending
Rajasthan Value Added 8.22 | 2011-2012 to Rajasthan Tax
Value Added Tax 2014-2015 Board

Tax Act, 2003

Goods and | Goods and 1.31 | 2017-18 Appellate
Services Tax Act | Services Tax Authority,  State
2017 Tax, Udaipur

* Net of amounts paid including under protest

(viif) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, the Company has not surrendered or disclosed any transactions,
previously unrecorded as income in the books of account, in the tax assessments under the
Income Tax Act, 1961 as income during the year.

(ix) (@)  According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examinatiog,(
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Annexure A to the Independent Auditor’s Report on the Financial Statements
of Schloss Udaipur Private Limited for the year ended 31 March 2022
(Continued)

(b)

©

(e)

®

9 (a)

(b)

(xi) (a)

(b)

(©

(xii)

(xiii)

(xiv) (a)

(b)

(xv)

of the records of the Company, the Company has not defaulted in repayment of loans and
borrowing or in the payment of interest thereon to any lender.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, the Company has not been declared a wilful defaulter by any
bank or financial institution or government or government authority.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us by the
management, term loans were applied for the purpose for which the loans were obtained.

According to the information and explanations given to us by the management, the Company
has not raised funds on short term basis. Accordingly, clause 3(ix)(d) of the Order is not
applicable.

The Company does not hold any investment in any subsidiaries, associates or joint ventures (as
defined under the Act) during the year ended 31 March 2022. Accordingly, clause 3(ix)(e) is not
applicable.

According to the information and explanations given to us and procedures performed by us, we
report that the Company has not raised loans during the year on the pledge of securities held in
its subsidiaries, joint ventures or associate companies (as defined under the Act).

The Company has not raised any moneys by way of initial public offer or further public offer
(inctuding debt instruments) Accordingly, clause 3(x)(a) of the Order is not applicable.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, the Company has not made any preferential allotment or private
placement of shares or fully or partly convertible debentures during the year. Accordingly, clause
3(x)(b) of the Order is not applicable.

Based on examination of the books and records of the Company and according to the
information and explanations given to us, no fraud by the Company or on the Company has
been noticed or reported during the course of the audit.

According to the information and explanations given to us, no report under sub-section (12) of
Section 143 of the Act has been filed by the auditors in Form ADT-4 as prescribed under Rule
13 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the Central Government.

We have taken into consideration the whistle blower complaints received by the Company during
the year while determining the nature, timing and extent of our audit procedures.

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is nota Nidhi Company.
Accordingly, clause 3(xii) of the Order is not applicable.

The Company is a private limited company and accordingly the requirements as stipulated by
the provisions of Section 177 of the Act are not applicable to the Company. In our opinion and
according to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of records of the Company, transactions with the related parties are in compliance with Section
188 of the Act where applicable and details of such transactions have been disclosed in the
financial statements as required by the applicable accounting standards.

Based on information and explanations provided to us and our audit procedures, in our opinion,
the Company has an internal audit system commensurate with the size and nature of its
business.

We have considered the internal audit reports of the Company issued till date for the period
under audit.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has
not entered into any non-cash transactions with its directors or persons connected to its directors
and hence, provisions of Section 192 of the Act are not applicable to the Company.
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Annexure A to the Independent Auditor’s Report on the Financial Statements
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(Continued)

(xvi) (a) The Company is not required to be registered under Section 45-1A of the Reserve Bank of India

(b)

(©

(d)

(xvii)

(xviii)

(xix)

(xx)

Act, 1934. Accordingly, clause 3(xvi)(a) of the Order is not applicable.

The Company is not required to be registered under Section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of India
Act, 1934. Accordingly, clause 3(xvi)(b) of the Order is not applicable.

The Company is not a Core Investment Company (CIC) as defined in the regulations made by
the Reserve Bank of India. Accordingly, clause 3(xvi)(c) of the Order is not applicable.

The Company is not part of any group (as per the provisions of the Core Investment Companies
(Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016 as amended). Accordingly, the requirements of clause
3(xvi)(d) are not applicable.

The Company has incurred cash losses of Rs 27.82 millions in the current financial year and Rs
191.02 millions in the immediately preceding financial year.

There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors during the year. Accordingly, clause
3(xviii) of the Order is not applicable.

We draw attention to Note 2.2 to the financial statements which explains that the Company has
incurred losses in current year and previous year and has accumulated losses as at
31 March 2022. Further, the Company’s current assets exceed its current liabilities as at
31 March 2022 by Rs 1,173.59 millions.

During the first three months of the year, the Company witnessed softer revenues due to the
second wave of COVID-19 and consequent lockdowns in several states across the country.
Also there was a third wave in the month of January 2022, resulting in restrictions in some
states, which also adversely impacted the revenues. This year the Company has seen quite an
improvement in business over the previous year, as this year the Company had lesser impact
of COVID-19 with lesser restrictions. During the year, the Company has obtained working capital
loan from a Bank which has resulted in increase in cash balance as at 31 March 2022 Based
on these initiatives undertaken by the Company, there is adequate cash balance to meet its
obligations.

On the basis of the above and according to the information and explanations given to us, on
the basis of the financial ratios, ageing and expected dates of realisation of financial assets and
payment of financial liabilities, other information accompanying the financial statements, our
knowledge of the Board of Directors and management plans and based on our examination of
the evidence supporting the assumptions, nothing has come to our attention, which causes us
to believe that any material uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report that the Company
is not capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as and when they
fall due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date. We, however, state that this is
not an assurance as to the future viability of the Company. We further state that our reporting is
based on the facts up to the date of the audit report and we neither give any guarantee nor any
assurance that all liabilities falling due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date,
will get discharged by the Company as and when they fall due.

The requirements as stipulated by the provisions of Section 135 are not applicable to th/?
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Annexure A to the Independent Auditor’s Report on the Financial Statements
of Schloss Udaipur Private Limited for the year ended 31 March 2022
(Continued)

Company. Accordingly, clauses 3(xx)(a) and 3(xx)(b) of the Order are not applicable.

ForBSR&Co.LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm's Registration No.:101248W/W-100022

g H:Sheds

Jaymin Sheth

Partner
Place: Mumbai Membership No.: 114583
Date: 29 September 2022 ICAl UDIN:22114583AWQDSK1892
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Annexure B to the Independent Auditor’s Report on the financial statements
of Schloss Udaipur Private Limited for the year ended 31 March 2022

Report on the internal financial controls with reference to the aforesaid financial
statements under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Act

(Referred to in paragraph 2(A)(f) under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory
Requirements’ section of our report of even date)

We have audited the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements of Schloss Udaipur
Private Limited (‘the Company”) as of 31 March 2022 in conjunction with our audit of the financial
statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, adequate internal financial controls with
reference to financial statements and such internal financial controls were operating effectively as at
31 March 2022, based on the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements criteria
established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India (the “Guidance Note").

Management’s and Board of Directors’ Responsibilities for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s Management and the Board of Directors are responsible for establishing and maintaining
internal financial controls based on the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements
criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the
Guidance Note. These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate
internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of
its business, including adherence to company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention
and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the
timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Act.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls with reference to
financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note
and the Standards on Auditing, prescribed under Section 143(10) of the Act, to the extent applicable to
an audit of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements. Those Standards and the
Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements were established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material
respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls with reference to financial statements and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of
internal financial controls with reference to financial statements included obtaining an understanding of
internal financial controls with reference to financial statements, assessing the risk that a material
weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control
based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgement, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls with reference to financial statements.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with Reference to Financial Statements

A company's internal financial controls with reference to financial statements is a process designed to
provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation ofﬁnanclal;/f
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Annexure B to the Independent Auditor’s Report on the financial statements
of Schloss Udaipur Private Limited for the year ended 31 March 2022
(Continued)

statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A
company's internal financial controls with reference to financial statements include those policies and
procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly
reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance
that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance
with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are
being made only in accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the company; and (3)
provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use,
or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls with Reference to Financial Statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements,
including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements
due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal
financial controls with reference to financial statements to future periods are subject to the risk that the
internal financial controls with reference to financial statements may become inadequate because of
changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

ForBSR & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm’'s Registration No.:101248W/W-100022

Jr 2kt

Jaymin Sheth

Partner
Place: Mumbai Membership No.: 114583
Date: 29 September 2022 ICAI UDIN:22114583AWQDSK1892

Page 12 of 12



SCHLOSS UDAIPUR PRIVATE LIMITED
Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2022

(Rupees in millions)

Particulars Note As at As at
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Shareholders' funds
Share capital 3 51.07 51,07
Reserves and surplus 4 (121.85) 30.93
(70.78) 82.00
Non-current liabilities
Long-term borrowings 5 4,328.30 3,865.31
Other Long term liabilities b 26.18 -
Long-term provisions 7 2.16 3.61
4,356.64 3,868.92
Current liabilities
Short-term borrowings 8 157.99 12.96
Trade payables 9
- Dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises 2.15 1.00
- Dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small enterprises 18.71 35.70
Other current liabilities 10 147.44 87.99
Short-term provisions 11 0.16 0.10
326.45 137.75
Total 4,612.30 4,088.68
ASSETS
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment and Intangible Assets
Property, Plant and Equipment 12 2,888.17 2,928.84
Intangibles assets 13 160.50 223.54
Capital work-in-progress 14 0.55 -
Deferred tax assets {net) 15 - -
Long-term loans and advances 16 24.63 13.10
Other non-current assets 17 38.40 5.15
3,112.25 3,170.63
Current assets
Inventories 18 22.48 22.22
Trade receivables 19 3.55 3.64
Cash and bank balances 20 603.89 624.58
Short-term loans and advances 21 821.23 214.67
Other current assets 22 48.90 52.94
1,500.05 918.05
Total 4.612.30 4,088.68
Significant accounting policies 2
1-45

The notes referred to above form an integral part of the financial statements

As per our report of even date attached

For BSR & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No: 101248W/W-100022

g 7hek

Jaymin Sheth
Partner
Membership Number: 114583

Place: Mumbai
Date: 29 September 2022

. chalf of the board of directors of

Schloss Jdaipur Private Limited
CIN: L)#5101DL2019PTC347495

0.:\Jhala.

Rati Shankar
Director
DIN: 07967039

Place: Mumbai
Date: 29 September 2022



SCHLOSS UDAIPUR PRIVATE LIMITED
Statement of profit and loss for the year ended 31 March 2022

(Rupees in millions)
For the year ended 31 For the year ended 31

Particul

arfietars Nage March 2022 March 2021
Revenue from operations 23 644.52 349.65
Other income 24 86.71 12.95
Total Income 731.23 362.60
Expenses

Consumption of food and beverages 25 37.58 28.47
Employee benefits expense 26 116.20 98.59
Finance costs 27 354.33 259.78
Depreciation and amortisation expense 28 125.09 138.83
Other expenses 29 250.82 166.74
Total expenses 884.02 692.41
Loss before tax (152.79) (329.81)
Tax expense

- Current tax = -

- Deferred tax charge / (credit) 15 - -
Loss after tax (152.79) (329.81)
Earning per equity share (in rupees) 34

Basic earnings per share (Face value Rs 10 each) (29.92) (81.93)
Diluted earnings per share (Face value Rs 10 each) (29.92) (81.93)
Significant accounting policies 2

The notes referred to above form an integral part of the financial statements 145

As per our report of even date attached

For BS R & Co. LLP For and on behalf of the board of directors of
Chartered Accountants Schloss Udanipiir Private Limited

L2019PTC347495

{p. Shodo.

Firm Registration No: 101248W/W-100022

St pha

Jaymin Sheth Ravi Shankar
Parmer Direciar Direcior
DIN: 07967035 BIN: 07967039

Membership Number: 114583

Ince: Mumbai
: 29 September 2022

Place: Mumbai
Date: 29 September 2022  Da

Place: Mumbai
Date: 29 September 2022



SCHLOSS UDAIPUR PRIVATE LIMITED
Cash flow statement for the year ended 31 March 2022

(Rupees in millions)
i For the year ended For the year ended
Particulars 31 March 2022 31 March 2021

Cash flows frem operating aclivities

Profit/(Loss) before tax for the year (152.79) (329.81)
.i;.fﬂLmnem.\'_y’ar:

Depreciation and amortisation 125.09 138.83
Finance costs 354.33 259.79
Provision | write off of trade and other receivables 125 -
Compensated absences wrinen back (1.38) (0.04)
Net g on dispdsal of property, plant and equipment (1.53) -
1nterest iNCOME (15.82) 3.75
Operating cash flows before working capital changes 309.15 72.52

Warking capital movements:

(Increase)Decrense in lpans and advances (4.08) (67.11)
(Increase)/Decrease in inventories (0.26) 1.87
(Inclunsclfl):clcasc in trade receivables (1.17 9.30
Decrease/{ncrease) in other assets 3.74 (57.36)
{Decrease)/Increase in trade payables (15.84) (3.69)
Increase/{Decrease) in other liabilities 33.49 (38.61)
(D fincrease in provi {{aES (0.01) (2.13)
Cash gencrated from aperalions 325.04 (85.21)
1ncome taxes pand, net (7.09) (1.45)
Net cash Mows generated from operating activities (A) 317.95 !86.66]
Cash flows from investing nctivities

Payment for purchase of property. plant andequipment including capital work in progress (24.62) (13.34)
Procecds from properiy. plant and eq ipments including capital work in progress 1.58 -
Proceeds | investment in fixed deposits 417.52 (480.03)
Proceeds from matsnty of fixed deposits (33.25) -
Inter-corporate deposits given, net (604.00) (96.00)
Interest received 15.82 0.68
Net cash flows used in investing activities (B) (226.95) (588.69)

I - M

Cash flows from financing aclivities

Proceeds from long-term borrowings 611.54 711.13
Proceeds from issuance of equity shares including securities premium - 172.42
Repayment of long-1erm harrowings (3.53) (1.90)
Finance costs paid 1 Refer note SAMD} (302.1%) (150.43)
Net cash flows: generated from financing activities ©) 305,81 731.22
Net increase in cash anid cash equivalents (A+B+C) 396.82 55.87
Cash nnd cash equivalents as al beginning of the year 89.55 33.68
Cash and cash equivalents 4t the end of the period 186,37 $9.55
Components of cash and cash equivalents
Cash on hand 0.53 0.53
Balance with banks
-ify eurrent account 45.84 39.02
- in deposit accounts with original maturity of less than 3 months 440,00 -
Total cash and cash equivalents (Refer note 20) 486.37 89.55

The cash flow statement has been prepared in accordance with "Indirect Method" as set out on Accounting Standard -3 on "Cash Flow Statements” referred to in Coinpanies Act.
2013

The notes referred to above form an integral part of the financial statements

As per our report of even date attached

For BSR & Co. LLP For and on behalf of the board of directors of

Chartered Avcotntants Schloss Utlaipuy Private Limited

Firm Registration No: 101248W/W-100022 CIN: U55101 20| 9PTC347495
Dozt (w W@-

Jaymin Sheth nagar RaviShankar

Partner irec Director

Membership Number: 114583 DIN: 07967035 DIN: 07967039
Place: Mumbai

Date: 29 September 2022 Date: 2

Mumbai
September 2022

Place: Mumbai
Date: 29 September 2022



SCHLOSS UDAIPUR PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2022 (Continued)

1

2.1

2.2

23

2.4

' bperatiﬁ'ﬁ__i.f_\'cfi«

Company information

Schloss Udaipur Private Limited (“the Company”) an Indian subsidiary of Project Ballet Udaipur Holdings (DIFC) Private Limited was
incorporated on 20 March 2019 under the provisions of Companies Act, 2013 and started its operations effective 17 October 2019 by acquiring
Udaipur hotel undertaking of HLV Limited. The Company is in the hospitality industry and operates hotel under the brand name of "THE
LEELA".

Significant accounting policies
The accounting policies set out below have been applied consistently to the periods presented in these financial statements.

Basis of preparation of financial statements

The accompanying financial statements are prepared in compliance with the requirements under Section 133 of the C ompanies Act, 2013 ("the
Act"), read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 and Companies (Accounting Standard Amendment Rules, 2016) and other
Generally Accepted Accounting Principles ("GAAP") in India, under the historical cost convention, on the accrual basis of accounting. The

financial statements are prepared in Indian rupees in millions.

Going Concern

The Company has incurred a loss of Rs.152.79 millions during the year ended 31 March 2022, has accumulated losses of Rs.528.3 millions and
negative net worth of Rs.70.78 millions at 31 March 2022.

During the first three months of the year, the Company witnessed softer revenues due to the second wave of C OVID-19 and consequent
lockdowns in several states across the country. Also there was a third wave in the month of January 2022, resulting in restrictions in some states,
which also adversely impacted the revenues. This year the Company has seen quite an improvement in business over the previous year, as this
year the Company had lesser impact of COVID-19 with lesser restrictions.

During the year, the Company has obtained working capital loan from a Bank which has resulted in increase in cash balance as at 31 March
2022.

Based on these initiatives undertaken by the Company, there is adequate cash balance to meet its obligations.

The Company has assessed the potential impact of Covid-19 on its capital and financial resources, profitability and overall liquidity position. In
developing the assumptions and estimates relating to the future uncertainties in the economic conditions because of this pandemic, the Company
as at the date of approval of these financial statements has used internal and external sources of information and based on current estimates,
expects to recover the carrying amounts of assets. The impact of Covid- 19 may be different from that estimated as at the date of approval of
these financial statements. The Company will continue to closely monitor any material changes to future economic conditions as the COVID-19

situation continues to evolve.

In view of the above, the Company believes that it will be able to meet all its contractual obligations and liabilities as and when they fall due in
near future and accordingly, these financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis.

Use of estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with GAAP in India requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect
the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, revenue and expenses and the disclosure of contingent liabilities on the date of the financial
statements. The estimates and assumptions used in the accompanying financial statements are based upon management's evaluation of the
relevant facts and circumstances as of the date of financial statements which in management's opinion are prudent and reasonable. Actual results
may differ from the estimates used in preparing the accompaying financial statements. Any revision to accounting estimates is recognised
prospectively in current and future periods.

Current / Non-current classification

All assets and liabilities are classified into current and non-current.

Assets

An asset is classified as current when it satisfies any of the following criteria:

(a) it is expected to be realised in, or is intended for sale or consumption in the entity’s normal operating cycle;
(b) it is held primarily for the purpose of being traded;

(c) it is expected to be realised within twelve months after the balance sheet date; or

(d) it is cash or a cash equivalent unless it is restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for atleast twelve months after the
balance sheet date.

Current assets include the current portion of non-current assets.

All other assets are classified as non-current.

Liabilities

A liability is classified as current when it satisfies any of the following criteria:

(a) it is expected to be settled in the entity’s normal operating cycle;

(b) it is held primarily for the purpose of being traded;

(c) it is due to be settled within twelve months after the balance sheet date; or

(d) the Company does not have an unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for at least 12 months after the reporting date. Terms of
a liability that could, at the option of the counterparty, result in its settlement by the issue of equity instruments do not affect its classification.
Current liabilities include current portion of non-current liabilities.

All 6ther Iiabi_i\iﬁcs are classified as non-current.

Operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realisation in cash or cash equivalents.

Based 'on thie ridture of services and the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realisation in cash and cash equivalents,

the C o;npauy_bas ascertained its operating cycle as 12 months for the purpose of current — non-current classification of assets and liabilitie/s'




SCHLOSS UDAIPUR PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2022 (Continued)

2.5

2.6

2.7

2.8

2.9

2.10

Foreign exchange translation

Initial recognition
Transactions denominated in foreign currencies are recorded at the exchange rate prevailing on the date of the ransaction or that approximates
the actual rate at the date of the transaction.

Conversion

Monetary items denominated in foreign currencies at the year end are restated at year end rates. Non-monetary itemns which are carried in terms
of historical cost denominated in a foreign currency are reported using the exchange rate at the date of the transaction; and non-monetary items
which are carried at fair value or other similar valuation denominated in a foreign currency are reported using the exchange rates that existed
when the values were determined.

Exchange difference

Exchange differences arising on the settlement or on reporting of monetary items of Company at rates different from those at which they were

initially recognized are recorded as income OF €Xpense in the year in which they arise.

Cash flow statement

Cash flows are reported using indirect method, whereby profit / (loss) before tax for the year is adjusted for the effects of transactions of a non-
cash nature and any deferrals or accruals of past or future cash receipts or payments. The cash flows from operating, investing and financing
activities of the Company are segregated.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash comprises of cash in hand and demand deposits with banks. cash equivalents are short-term balances (with an original maturity of three
months or less from the date of acquisition), highly liquid investments that are readily convertible into known amounts of cash and which are
subject to insignificant risk of changes in value.

Earnings per share

The basic and dilutive earnings per equity share is computed by dividing the net profit or loss for the period attributable to the equity
shareholders by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the reporting period. The number of shares used in computing
diluted earnings per share comprises the weighted average shares considered for deriving basic earnings per share and also the weighted average

number of shares that could have been issued on the conversion of all dilutive potential equity shares, unless the results would be anti-dilutive.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognised upon rendering of the service, provided pervasive evidence of an arrangement exists, tariff / rates are fixed or are
determinable and collectability 18 reasonably certain. Revenue comprises sale of rooms, food and beverages and allied services relating to hotel
operations, including management and operating [ees. Rebates and discounts granted 1o customers are reduced from revenue.

Interest income
Interest income is recognised on a time proportion basis taking into account amount outstanding and interest rate applicable.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment (tangible assets) are carricd at cost of acquisition or construction less accumulated depreciation and impairment
loss, if any. The cost of property, plant and equipment comprises s purchase price net of any trade discounts and rebates, any import duties and
other taxes (other than those subsequently recoverable from the tax authorities), any directly atiributable expenditure on making the assel ready
for its intended use, other incidental expenses and interest on borrowings attributable to acquisition of qualifying property. plant and equipment
upto the date the asset is ready for its intended use.

Capital work-in-progress comprises of the cost of property, plant and equipment that are not yet ready for their intended use at the balance sheet
date.

Depreciation on tangible property, plant and equipment has been provided on the straight-ling method as. per the useful life prescribed in
Schedule 11 to the Companics Act, 2013 except in respect of buildings, plant and machinery and fumiture and fixtures, in whose case the life of
the assets has been re-assessed as under hased on technical evaluation, taking nto the account the nature of the asset, the estimated usage of the

asset, aspects such as modifications effected since acquisition, the present condition of the existing assets and level of maintenance.

Depreciation is provided on a pro-rata basis i.e. from the date on which assets is ready for use. Depreciation on sale of asset is provided up to the

date of sale of the ass?h'




SCHLOSS UDAIPUR PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2022 (Continued)

2.11

2.12

213

of the pro
Useful life as per Schedule IT

y, plant and ¢q uipment are 2

s follows:
(in years) Useful life as per Technical Assessment (in years)

Based on the above, the estimated useful lives

Category of assets

Buildings 60 years 60 years
Plant and machinery 15 years 3 years to 15 years
Furniture and fixtures 8 years 8 years
Office equipments 5 years Not Applicable
Computers 3 years Not Applicable
Data processing units 6 years Not Applicable
Vehicles 6 years Not Applicable

A property, plant and equipment 1 derecognised on disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Gains or
losses from disposal / retirement of an tangible asset are measured as the difference between the net digposal proceeds and the carrying amount

of the asset and are recognized in the statement of profit and loss.

Intangible assets

Intangible assets are carvied at cost of acquisition less accumulated amortisation and impairment loss, if any. Intangible assets arc amortized on 8
straight-line basis over the period in which economic benefits will be derived from their use. The amortisation period and the amorhisation
method are reviewed atleast cach financial year end. If the expected useful life of the asset is significantly different from previous estimates, the

amortisation period is changed accordingly-

Based on the above, the estimated useful lives of the intangible assels are as follows:

Category of assets Useful life (in years)

Goodwill 5 years
Computer software 6 years

An intangible asset is derecognised on disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Gains or losses from

disposal / retirement of an intangible asset ar¢ measured as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset

and are recognized in the statement of profit and loss.

Impairment of assets

In accordance with AS 28 on 'Impairment of assets', the Company assesses at cach balance sheet date whether there is any indication that an asset
may be impaired. If any such indication exists, the Company estimates the recoverable amount of the asset. The recoverable amount is the greater
of the net selling price and value in use. Value in us¢ is the present value of the estimated future cash flows expected 0 arise from the continuing
use of the asset and from its disposal at the end of its useful life. In assessing the value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted 1o
their present value based on appropriate discount factor. 1f such recoverable amount of the asset or the recoverable amount of the cash generating
unit to which. the asset belongs is less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount is reduced to its yecoverable amount. The reduction is

treated as an impairment loss and is recognized in the statement of profit and loss.

If at the balance sheet date there is an indication that a previously assessed impairment loss 1o longer exists, the recoverable amount s

reassessed and the asset is reflected at the recoverable amount subject to maximum of depreciable historical cost.

Taxation

Income tax expense comprises current tax (i.e. amount of tax for the period determined in accordance with the income-tax law) and deferred tax
charge or credit (reflecting the tax effects of timing difterences between accounting income and taxable income for the period).

Current tax
Provision for current tax is recognized based on the estimated tax Jability computed after taking credit for allowances and exemptions in

accordance with the tax laws applicable to the Company.

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is recognized n respeet of timing differences between taxable income and accounting income 1.¢. differences that originate in one
period and are capable of reversal in the subsequent periods. The deferred tax charge or credit and the corresponding deferred tax liabilities or

assels are recognized using the tax rates and tax laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the balance sheet date. Deferred tax

assets are recognized only to the extent there 1S reasonable certainty that the assets can be realized in future; however, where there is unabsorbed

depreciation or carry forward loss under taxation laws, deferred tax assets arc recognised only if there is virtual certainty supported by

convincing evidence that the sufficient future taxable income will be available against which such deferred tax assets can be realized.

Current tax assets and current 1ax liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable night to set off the recognised amounts and there is an
the asset and the liability on 3 nel basis. Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset when there is @ legally

intention 1o settle
he deferred tax assels and the deferred tax liabilities relate

enforceable right to set off assels against liabilities representing current tax and where U
(0 taxes on INcome levied by the same goveming taxation laws.

Deferred tax assets are reviewed as at each balance sheet date and written down oOF written up to reflect the amount that is reasonably / virtually

certain (as the case may be) to be rcalizc%




SCHLOSS UDAIPUR PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2022 (Continued)

2.14

2.15

2.16

Employee benefits

Short-term benefits

All employee benefits payable wholly within twelve months of rendering the service are classified as short-tenm employee benefits. These
benefits include salary, wages and bonus, short term compensated absences such as paid annual leave and sickness leave. The undiscounted
amount of short-term employee benefits (including compensated absences) expected to be paid in exchange for the services rendered by
employees is recognized as an expense during the period of rendering of service by the employee.

Long term employee benefits

Defined contribution plans

The Company’s contribution to provident fund and employee state insurance scheme are considered as defined contribution plans and are

recognized as an expense when employees have rendered service entitling them to the contributions.

Defined benefit plans

(Post-employment benefit)

The Company’s gratuity scheme is a defined benefit plan. The Company’s net obligation in respect of the gratuity benefit scheme is calculated
by estimating the amount of future benefit that employees have eamed in return for their service in the current and prior periods; that benefit is

discounted to determine its present value.

The present value of the obligation under such defined benefit plan is determined based on actuarial valuation by an independent actuary using
the Projected Unit Credit Method, which recognizes each period of service as giving rise to additional unit of employee benefit entitlement and

v

measures each unit separately to build up the final obligation.

The obligation is measured at the present value of the estimated future cash flows. The discount rates used for detenmining the present value of
the obligation under defined benefit plan, are based on the market yields on government securities as at the balance sheet date. When the
calculation results in a benefit to the Company, the recognised asset is limited to the net total of any unrecognised actuarial losses and past
service costs and the present value of any future refunds from the plan or reductions in future contributions to the plan. Actuarial gains and losses

are recognized immediately in the statement of profit and loss.

Other long-term employee benefits
Compensated absences

The employees can carry forward a portion of the unutilised accrued compensated absences and utilise it in future service periods or received
cash compensation on termination of employment. The Company records obligation for compensated absences in the period in which the

employee renders services that increase this entitlement. The obligation is measured on the basis of independent actuarial valuation.

Inventories
Stock of food and beverages and stores and operating supplies are carried at the lower of cost (computed on a weighted average basis) or net

realisable value. Cost includes the fair value of consideration paid including duties and taxes (other than those refundable), inward freight and
other expenditure directly attributable to the purchase. Trade discounts and rebates are deducted in determining the cost of purchase.

Provisions and contingent liabilities

A provision is recognised if, as a result of a past event, the Company has a present obligation that can be estimated reliably, and it is probable
that an outflow of economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation. Provisions are recognised at the best estimate of the expenditure
required to settle the present obligation at the balance sheet date. The provisions are measured on an undiscounted basis.

Contingencies:

Provision in respect of loss contingencies relating to claims, litigation, assessment, fines, penalties, etc. are recognised when it is probable that a
liability has been incurred, and the amount can be estimated reliably.

A contingent liability exists when there is a possible but not probable obligation, or a present obligation that may, but probably will not, require
an outflow of resources, or a present obligation whose amount cannot be estimated reliably. Contingent Labilities do not warrant provisions, but
are disclosed unless the possibility of outflow of resources is remote.

Contingent assets are neither recognised nor disclosed in the financial statements. However, contingent assets are assessed continuously and if it
is virtually certain that an inflow of economic benefits wilt arise, the asset and related income are recognised in the period in which the change

occur&(ﬂ




SCHLOSS UDAIPUR PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes to the financial statements for (he year ended 31 March 2022 (Continued)

3 Share capital (Rupees in millions)

As at As ot
AR 31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Authorised
14.750.000 {Previous Year: 14.750,000) cquity shares of Rs 10 cach 147.50 147.50
147.50 147.50
Issued, subscrihed and paid up
5.107.142 (Previous Year: 5.107.142) equity shares of Rs 10 cach. fully paid up 51.07 51.07
51.07 51.07
a) Reconciliation of number of shares and amounts at the beginning and at the end of the reporting period
{Rupees in mitfions)
N Asat 31 March 2022 As at 31 March 2021
Particulars
Na. of shares Amount No. of shares Amount
Al the beginning ol Lhe year 51,07,142 51.07 28,60,000 28.60
Shares issued during Lhe ycar - - 2247042 2247
Al the end of the year FL07.042 S107 SL07,142 S1L07
b) Rights, preference und restrictions attached fo equity shares
The Company has a single class of cquity shares Accordingly, all equity shares rank equally with regard to dividends and share in the Company s residual asscts The equily shares are
entitled to receivc dividend as declared from time to time The voling rights of an cquity sharcholder on a poll (not show of hands) are 1n proportion to its share of the paid-up equity
capital of the Company
On winding up of the Company. the holders of equity shares will be entitled 1o receie the residual assets of the Company
¢) Shares held by holding company / ultimate holding company
(Rupees in milltans)
i As at 31 March 2022 As at 31 Murch 2024
Particulars
No. of shares Amnuni No. of shares Amount
Equity shares of Rs, 10 cach fully paid-up
BSREP i1l India Ballet If Pte. Ltd , holding company - . 51,07,141 51.07
BSREP 11l Iudin Ballet Pte Ltd . ullimatc holding company - - 1 0.00
Project Ballet Udaipur Holdings (DIFC) Private Limited. holding company 51,07,141 51.07 - -
BSREP Il India Ballel Holdings (DIFC) Limited. ultimale holding company 1 0.00 - -
5107142 51.07 51,07,142 5107
d) Details of shares held by sharcholders holding morc than 5% of the aggregate shares in the Company
. As at 31 Murch 2012 As at 31 March 2021
Particulars i
No. of shaves %o of Holding: No. of shares % of Holding)
Equity shares of Rs. 10 each fully paid-up
Project Ballet Udaipur Holdings (DIFC) Private Limited. holding company 51,07,141 9999998 - -
BSREP I1I India Ballet Il Pie. Ltd . holding company - - 51,07,141 99.99998%
51,07,141 99, 999955 107,041 99.99998%
¢) Terms of any securitics convertibe inte cquity shares
Refler note 5 for terms of conversion of C Isorily Com ertible Deb into cquity shares
f) Company has nol issued amy bonus shares. shares for consideration other than cash and ncither bought back any shares from the date of incorporation
¢) Disclosurc of Shareholding of Prometcrs

Equity sharcs of Rs. 10 cach fully paid-up Ax at 31 March 2022

As at 31 March 2021

Change in % of

Promuters No. of shares % of Holding| No. of shares % of Holding] Holding

Project Ballel Udaipur Holdings (DIFC) Private Limited 5107141 D9 APIDRT | - 0.00% 99.99998%

BSREP 11 Iudia Ballet Holdings (DIFC) Limited 1 000003 | - 0.00% 0002 %
51.07,142 100.00000% - 0.00% TR DRI




SCHLOSS UDAIPUR PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes fo the financial siatements for the y ear ended 31 March 2022 (Continued)

4 Reserves and surplus

: As at As at

Particulars 31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Securities premium account:

At the commencement of the year 406.45 256.50
Add; Premium on sharcs issucd during the year - 14995
At the end of the year 406,45 406,45
Retained earnings:

Al the commencement of the ycar (375.52) (45.7h)
Add: Loss for the year (152.7%) (329.81)
At the end of the year 1528.30) (378.52
— e
Total 121 85} 30.93

5 Long-term borrowings

(Rupees in millions)
As at Asat

31 March 2022 31 March 2021

Particulars

Secured:
Term loans:
- From bunks
Rupse term loan (Refer note AL 3,061.29 3,023.27
Less © Amount disclosed under short lerm borrowings {Refer nole A | (d)below} (1549} (1] 9y
3, 4580 302218
Workuig capilal term loan (Refernote A.2. & A3) 1,140.00 570.00
Less - Amaounl disclosed under short tem borrowings {Refer note A2 (c)below) (142.50) (11.55)
Unsecured:
10.50% unsecured compulsorily converlible debentures (Refer note B) 285,00 255.00
255.00 255.00
- —
Total 432830 531
Notes:

A Term loan frem Bank
A.Y, The kender has granted a werm loan Facility undker the Comimon Faciliny Agreemen dated 30 Sipicmber 2019 1o the Compans and three co-bomowers 1< Sehloss Chennai Private Linited,
Sehloss Bangalore Privae Limited il Sehloss Chanabsa Privase Laumited. for a total amounting o Rs, 27,8100 millions for the purpose of acquuiien and relurbishnient of the ol
property acquired by cnch of the thiee co-borawers and tic Compar: s hotel property 18 Udbaipuir, The doar 1o door tenure of the loan is 15 vears nchuding maratoium of oue véar. The
Joan i repmablke in 56 quarerty stryctured instoll i 31 Deccrber 2020 The Joan cames imterest rake linked 1o lender's one year margmal cost of funds hased lending rate
(“MELR™, subject 1o anmual reset. plus spread ranging from 0800 1o 1 607 based on the extemal eredil ating: The Company: hias avalable facility of Rs, 2.990,00 millions (Previous
Year, Re. 200000 mitlions (inehiding wndrawn amount of Rs 56 milliogs (Previout Year: Rs 97 milhons)) and rat of imerest as on 31 March 2022 is T % pa (Previous Year 750
% pa)

(a) Primary security:

The wotal term loan under the sakd agreement 15 secured against assers of the Company. ofher co-barmoners and obligaters 1& Schlass iMA Private Limited and Lecla Palaces and
fesors Limited under the Common Facility Agteement. imteralia. Including

| Exclusine charge on the entine assets (including mortgage of propern anid | of mortgage of leasehold rights in case of Jeaschold property. if any ] (pressat & latre).

i Eschusive charge on brand “Leela” pettaining o Hotels, oihicr intangibles. Goodwill, Inelleciual Propeny (1P}, utcalled capital (present and fupure)
i Exchrsive charge on all bank aceaunis ineluding bt not limiied to Escrow account (present & future)
s First charge on the entie urrent asseis (present and future)
v Hypothecation of cash flows

[Q)

Corporale guarantee:
i) of Sehtoss HMA Privale Limited. a fellow subsidiary
i) of Lecla Paloccs and Resorts Limited, a fellow subsidian

Other security:

i) Pledge of 30% shares of the Company held by the Praject Ballet Udaipur Holdings (DIFC) Privale Limited , Holding company. in favour of sccurily lrustee for the benelit of lenders
foe (he catirg term Joan eposure

i) A guarnoies af BSREP 11l India Ballet Pie Limiited, ultimate Holding compim situated at Singaporc upto an amourit of Rs. 3000 millions. cnforceable at Singapoie Lowards mecting
\lse shonfall in debt service obligations ill 30 March 2022

it A guaramee of BSREP 11 Indin Ballct Holdings {DIFC) Limiied . ullimate Holditig company. situaled at Dubai upio an amozin of Rs. 3.000 millions. enforccable at Dubai lowards
mecting the shorfall indebt serviee obligations from 31 March 2022.

w1 Morgage on the land situnted ot Agra owned by Leela Palaces and Resons Limited

{c

{d

Current matunties of long-term borrow ings are classificd as short lerm borrow ings

Modification in facility terms:
Lender on the request of the management has w aived the requirement of testing of financial covcnanls {ill the cnd of FY 2022-23w ith (esling o be performed on (he auditcd balance sheet
as a1 31 March 2024 ot ards

{e

(D Moratorium on interest:
Compam has availed the moratorium foeility for interest on lerm Joan for the period March, 2020 to Aupust 2020 which has been further capitalised into term Joan w ¢ £ 01 October
2020 aounting Lo Rs. 128 34 millions (Preyious year Rs. 131.02 millions)

A.2, The lender has granted @ Working capital term Loan (WCTL) Facilis under Guarantced Emergency Credit Line 20 (GECL 2.0y faciluy of Rs. 570 milllions on 17 Februan. 2021 10 the

Company 1 augment nel working capital. req ts o mect pperitional liabd The door 1o door tenure of the Joan 15 5 vears including maratorium of principal of one vear The

Joan 5 Tepavable n 48 quarteely survewarod mstaliments begitming 30 April 2022 The foan carries interest rate linked 10 fender's one year matgingl cost of funds based Jending rate
(“MCLR™), plus 1%, subjcctio amual resel

Primary security:
Second charge on sccuritics mentioned in A 1(a) above

(a

(b

Other security:
1) Pledye of 30% sharcs of the Company held by the Project Ballet Udaipur Holdings (DIFC) Prnale Limited . Holding company . favour of sceurity trustee for the benefit of lenders for
ihe entire ierm loan cxposure
i) Exiention el megtgage on \he land situatcd at Agra owned by Lecla Palaces and Resorts Lumited
F ,

{e) Cument maturines ol log-term borrow ings arc classified as short term borTowmgs, :[




SCHLOSS UDAIFUR FRIVATE LIMITED
Notes to the finanial stuternents for (he year cnded 31 March 2022 (Continucd}

5 Long-lerm berrowings (Continued}
Notes (Continued):

A3, The lender has granted a Waorking capital term Luoan (WCTLY Faciliy ander Guarantesd Emetgeney Credil Ling 30 (GECL 30 facility of Rs 370 millions (Previous Year Nillon 9

Diecember. 2021 10 (e Company 1o ugement et working capital. roquiremenls 1o mect aperational finbiliies The door 10 door tequre of the loan & o vears neluding: maratoriut of

principal of two years Tivé Joan i repayable 4% quanerly siructurcd insiallments beginning December 2023 The Joan carries microst rate linhcd to lender's 5ix moths matginal cost of
Tunds based Yendimg raie ("MOLR), plas 145 subjectio annual resct

(ay Primary security:
Second charge on securitics mentioned in A | (a) abore

(b) Other sechrity:
i) Pledic of 31 shares of the Company held by the Project Balict Udaipur Holdings (DIFC) Private Limited, Holding company- in favour of sceurity trustce for the benefit of Jenders for

e ennire temm hoan cuposure.
i1} Etention of mertgage on the land situated al Agra 0% ned by Lecla Palaces and Resorts Limited

Current malurities of long-lerm borros ings are classificd as short em borrowings

(c

B 10.50% unsecured compulsorily convertible debentures

Conversion terms:
Al the end of the Lenure (15 years), cach Compulsorihy Comertible Debentures ("CCD") of face \alue of Rs 100 cach will be comerted mto 1 equity share of face value of Rs 10 cach

CCD can be converied during the tenure of CCD at the oplion of both the partics i ¢.. CCD Holder and the Company Prov ided that the CCDs shall automatically stand converied into

(a

cquity shares upon:

(a) Commencement of the carporate insolency resolution process of the Company or. am of the co-borrowers under the Common Faciliy Agreement dated 30 Sepiember 2019 exccuted
with the lender: or

(b) Comversion of loan into cquits ol the Company or ans of all of the co-barrowers under the Common Facility Agrcement unless othenwise instructed by the Jender as per the Common
Facility Agrecment % ho have provided the Joans or who may have acceded Lo the financing documents

() Restriction on payment of interest on CCDs:
As per terms of the Common Facility Agrecment referred ot clause 4(A) aborc. interest on [he CCDs shall be due but cannot be paid by the Company until all the ducs under Common

Facility Agreement arc compleled or scized

Other Long term Liabilities
(Rupeis int millions)

As at Asal
31 March 2022 31 March 2021

Particulars

26.15 -
._-=._=_.=-.i.aw‘EL.—-—---’-="—'=--I=l

Tnterest aceruc bt ot due CCD (Refer note TR & 27)

Long-term provisions

(Hupecs in srefifensh
Particul Asat Asat
bl 31 March 2022 31 March 2021

Provision for employee benefits:

. Compensated phsences 1.00 192
- Grawity |Rgfer note 36) 116 1469
216 3,61

Short term Borrowings

. A
Particulars 31 March 2!

s at
022

‘Current maturitics of long-term T L | Refer note A dn

Trade payables

i Asat
articulars 31 March 2022

“Towal oulstanding diies of miero cerprises and small enterpeiscs {Re fer note bekow)
- Total outstanding ducs of creditors other than Imicro cnlerprises and small enlerpnses
- Related partics (Refer note 35)

- Others

Dues of micro enterprises and sm all enterprises

Particulars

o dug to suppliers Tepstered under the VISMED Act and remaining utrpaid

Interes due 1o supplers reghstered undet the MSMED Act and remining wnpaid 38 ot year
end

Principral amots paid 1o supplisrs segistered undet the MSMED Act beyood the
appoinicd day during the year

Inerest patd, other than wnder Section 16.0f MSMED Act e suppliers regiiered wnder the
MSMED Agt, bevond the sppointed dm during 1he year

Ierest pad, undker Section 16 S MSMED At to supplicss roguiered ymder e MSMED
Act. bayond the appointed day during e yeur

Interest due and pavabile Lonards supplirs repistered under MSMED At for payments
already made *

Fuher inierest remisiiling die

The management has identificd cnterprises which have prov ided goods and services 1o the Company and which qualify under the definition of micro and small cnlerprises as defined

under MSMED Act
* Inicrest duc and pavable tow ards supplicrs registered under MSMED Ac for payments already made amounts 10 Rs 259 {Previous year: Rs 27.0%




SCHLOSS UDAIPUR PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2022 (Continued)

9

Trade payables (Continued)

Trade payables ageing schedule
As at 31 March 2022

Outstanding for Tollowing perivds Trom date of transaction
BAESICEEE Accrued Less than 1year  1- 2 years -3 More than 3 years g
NEArs
) MSME - - -
(i) Others. 942 930 - - - 18.71
(i) Disputed dues - MSME - - - - - -
(iv) Disputed dues - Others - - - - - -
Total 9.42 11.44 - - - 20.86

2021 Rupees in millions)

As at 31 March

Outstanding for followin criods from date of transaction
Particula -3 Total
eulars Acerued Less than 1 year 1= 2 years 2 More than 3 years °
expenses yenrs
(i) MSME - 1.00 - - - 1,00

(i) Others 10.86 24 46 038 3569

(1) Disputed dues - MSME - - - - - -

(iv) Disputed dues - Others - - - - - -
Total 10.86 2545 0,38 - - 36.69

%




SCHLSS UBAIPUR PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes fu the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2022 (Continued)
10 Other current Tiabilities

Asat As at
31 March 2022 31 March 2021

Particulars

Trade | securliy depasits 0.15 Q.15
Advance from cuslomers 89.29 71.90
Emplosce dues payable 1273 2,09
Sratutosy ducs pavable
.+ Tax deducted ol source and cqualisation vy 5T 0.98
- Goods and services tax 12.52 1.7
- Provident fund 0.84 0.74
- Employees state insurance 0.06 0.05
_ Value added 1ax 0.19 0.38
Interest accrued but not duc on borrowings 1595 -
1474 $7.99

Short-term provisions

Asat As at

Particulars 31 March 2022 31 March 2021

Provision for employee henefits:
- Compensaicd absnees 0.11 0.04
- Gratuity (Refer pote 36) 0.06 (.06
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SCHLOSS UDAIPUR PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes to (he financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2022 {Continued)

15 Deferred tax assets (net)

{Rupiees in millians)
. Asat Asat
Farticulars 31 March 2022 31 March 2021
The components af Jeferred tax balances are as folloms.

) Deferred ta tiability
Arriimg s ccoun af HaHg differcnees in

Prren thion for emplo e berefits 1.56 -
E.\n:cssnfdcpmcmﬂm | amartisation on prepery, plant and cquipment under income ax 38.57 21.71
Jaws ener depreciation | jon pros fded in the books

40,13 2.0

(B Diferreil fix assers
Ariiiig o aecour af tmiig differesees -

Provision for cmployee benchits - 1.52
Disallow ance wis 438 of the Income-tas Act 196) 875 20.19
Peovision fo trade and ather receivables 0.38 -
Unabsorbed depreciption | busingss loss 31.00 -
40.13 271

Deferred tax assets (net) - (AF(B) -

Note
In absense of virwal certainily, Deferred Tax Assct Rs 108 18 mitlions (Preyious vear Rs 8628 mullions) on accounted dcprccnation/busincss Josses and disallowance u/s 43B has not
been recognised

16 Lone term loans and advances

Particulars

Capital adyances 9.26

Prepaid eapetises 1.7 -

Balances with government muthorbes. 4.04 399

Advance tan and tax deducied L source 962 15
24.63 13.11

Other non-current Assets

Particulars As at
31 March 2022 1 March 2021

Securify deposits 05
Margin moncy deposits wilh original maturity of morc than 12 months 033 -
Fixed deposil account jth original maturity of more than |2 months nn -

18 Iaventories
Al fuwer of cost and net realisable valuel

As at
31 March 2021

Asat
31 March 2022

Particulars

Food and beyverages 139 121
Stores and operauny supplics 857 10,11
248 FERE]

19 Trade receivables

(Rupecs in miflioms}
As at Asal
31 March 2021

Particulars

Receivables outstandinge Tor a period exceeding sit Tonths from the date they were

- Unsccured. considered good 0.08 -
_ Unsceured. considered doubtful 148 0.23
1.56 0.23
Less: Provision for doubtful recers ables 1.48 023
0.08 =
Other reeeivatiles:
- Unseguted. considered good 347 364




SCHLOSS UDAIPUR PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes to the financial stalements for (he vear ended 31 March 2022 (Continued)

19  Trade recciv ables (Continued)

Trade receit ables ageing schedule
As at 31 March 2022

Outstanding for follow ing perinde from date of transaction

Particalars Less than 6 6 months - 1 year  1-2years 2-3 years More than ol
manths 3 vears

(1} Undisputed Trade R bk idered good 347 3 - B - 155

(ii) Undi: Trade Rece: o idered doubtful 148 - - - 1.48

(iv) Disputed Trade receivables - considered good - - - - - -

(v) Disputed Trade receivables — considered doubtful - - . - - -

Less: provision for doubtful debls - Ll 4%) = - = [LEL]

Total 347 008 - - - .58
—

As af 31 March 2021 (Rupecs in millivns}

Outstanding for following periods from date of transaction

R Lemthang 6 months - 1 year  1-2 years 2-3 years Maore than Total
imanths Jyeurs
1) Undssputed Trade Reecisables - considered good iod - = - - 3.64
(i) Undi: d Trade ivables — doubtful - 023 - - - 023
(iv) Disputed Tradc receih ables - considered good - - . - =
(1) Disputed Trade receivables — considered doubtful - - - - - -
Less: provision for doubtful debls - 1123y - - -

Total

.64 - - - -




SCHLOSS UDAIPUR PRIVATE LIMITED

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2022 (Continucd)

20 Cash and bank balances

(Rupees in millions)

Particulars As.at As at
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
sy gvead conlh eipevadenis:
Cash on hand 053 0.53
Balance with banks
- n current accounts 45.84 89.02
- in fixed deposit account with original maturity of less than 3 months 440.00 -
Other bank balances
Balance with banks
- in fixed deposil account with original malurity of more than 3 months but less than 12 117.52 535.03
months
603.89 624.58
21 Short-term loans and advances
_ (Rupees in millions)

. As at As at
T 31 March2022 31 March 2021
Unsecured, considered good:

To related parties (Refer note 35)
Inter corporate deposit given (Refer note 35) 700.00 96.00
Advance against management fees 71.84 80.94
Other Advances 0.30 -
Other than related parties
Prepaid expenses 9.25 11.96
Advance (o suppliers 14.47 an
Balances with government authoritics 2528 21.88
Loans and ady ances to cmployees 0.09 0.12
821.23 214.67
Loans and advances to related parties
{Rupees in muillionx)
As at 31 March 2022 As at 31 March 2021
Type of Borrower Amount of loanor |, o Amount of loan or *% of the total
advance in the e L(}ans advance in the | Loans and Advances
nature of loan pndlAdy apcesiin the nature of loan in the mature of|
. nature of loans 5
ontstanding outstanding loans,
Related Partics® TILA4 106 176.94 100%%
* Related partics with common directars
22 Other current assets

{Rupees in millions)
As at As at
31 March 2022 31 March 2021

Particulars

To Related Parties (Refer note 35)

Interest receivable 22,86 4.10

Receivable against settlement in relation with business acquisition - 2522

Receivable against business support senices - 0.02

Other than related parties

Interest receivable 6.10 1,58

Unbilled revenue 19.94 22.02
48,50

5194 '«




SCHLOSS UDAIPUR PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes to the finuncial slatements for the year ended 31 March 2022 (Continued)

23 Revenue from operations

(Rupees in millions)
Pparticulars For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
[a) Sale of products:
Food and beverages revenue 173.67 122.98
(b) Sale of services:
Room mecome 454.65 218.54
Other allied services (taundry income, health club income, airport transfers, membership etc.) 16.20 8.13
47035 226,67
644.52 349.65

24 Other income
(Rupees in millions)

Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2022 31 Mareh 2021
Interest mcome :

- fixed deposit 16.66 3.75
- from intercorporale deposit 32.48 4,75
- others 2247 -
Compensated absences and pratty written back (Refer Note 36) 138 0.04
Met gain or toss on foreign currency transaction and translation 0.02 0.00
et gamn or loss on sale of fixed assets 1.53 -
Miscellaneous mcome 12.17 .41

86.71 12.95

Consumption of food and beverages

(Rupees in millions)

Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Tnventory at the beginning of the year 28.47 17.84
Add: Purchases 23.02 22,74
51.49 40.58
Less Inventory at the end of the year 13.91 1211
37.58 28.47

26 Employee benefits expense

(Rupees in millions)

Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2022 31 March 2021

Salatics and wages 95.42 86.72
Contribution to provident fund and employees state insurance (Refer Note 36) 530 4.63
Staff welfare expenses 15.48 7.24
116.20 98.59

27 Finance costs
(Rupees in millions)

particulars For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2022 31 Murch 2021
Interest expense on:

- Term loans * 309.25 253.65
- Compulsorily convertible debentures (CCDs} ** 29.93 -
Other bortowing costs (term Joan upfront fee, processing fee, advisory fee etc.) 15.15 .13

3 259.78

* Includes mierest on working capital term loan of Rs 57.48 millions.
** During previous year, on request by the Company, the CCD holder had waived the interest till 31 March 2021

wn




SCHLOSS UDAIPUR PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes o the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2022 (Continued)

28 Depreciation and amortisation

(Rupees in milfions)

particulars For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2022 31 March 2021

Denreciiion on Property. Plant & Equipments 61.93 75.76
Amortisation of intangible assets 63.16 63,07
125.09 138.83

29 Other expenses
(Rupees in millions)

Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Consumption of stores and operalmg supplies 2104 17.64
Power and fuel 43.48 40.59
Repairs and maintenance
- buildings 10.56 7.57
- plant and machinery 9.35 5.85
- others 14.46 8.04
Insurance 3.66 325
Communication 2.22 1.71
Travelling and conveyance 2.16 0.78
Guest transport 4.03 4.10
Printing and stationery 0.97 0.68
Reservation fee 0.83 0.65
Sales and credit card comnussion 34.88 15.55
Business pramotion 23.82 19.43
Management fees (Refer note 35) 4523 16.54
Legal and professional fees 11.03 725
Pavment to auditor's (Refer note below) 1.70 1.30
Provision / write=off of wrade and other receivables 125 -
Rates and taxes 11.14 9.01
Bank charges 0.30 0.19
Miscellaneous Expenses 8.71 6.61
250,82 166,74
Payment to auditor’s (excludi # taxes) (Rupees in millions)
particulars For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
1.76 1.30

Statutory audit

Reimbursement of expenses =
1.30,




SCHLOSS UDAIPUR PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2022 (Continued)

30 Contingent liabilities and commitments

3

—

(Rupees in millions)

As at As at
31 Mareh 2022 31 March 2021
Claims against the Company ot acknowledged as debts (Refer note (1) below} 2,27 1.90
Disputed statutory liabilities {refer note (ii) below} 9.53 13.11

e 50
11.80 15.01

2) Contingent liabilities

Particulars

Notes:

(i) The breaku of claims aganst the Company not acknowledped as debts 1s as under in millians)

(Rupees

Particulars . LI
31 March 2022 31 March 2021

Rajasthan Micro and Small Enterprises Facilitation Council and Nutan Deco 2.07 1.70

Private Limited {Refer note (a) below}

Industrial dispute by an ex-employee {Refer note (b) below} 0.20 0.20

(a) The Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Facilitation Council ("Council™) passed an ex-parte award in 2018 directing HLV Limited to pay Rs 0.80 millions
for amount not paid against the supplies made in 2008 along with interest HLV Limited have 1n 2019 obtained stay from Commercial court, Jaipur staying the
order of the Council and appeal before the court is pending.

(b) An ex-employee of HLV Limited disputed his termination and initiated a industrial dispute against HLV Limited before the Labour Department, Labour
Inspector Cum Conciliation Officer, Udaipur, claiming that his termination letter dated 01 July 2014 issued by HLV Limited be declared as unlawful and illegal
and that he should be reinstated in the employment along with payment of salary from the date of his terination till reinstatement and also be reimbursed for all
the costs and expenses incurred by him towards the case.

Notice of the case was received by HLV Limited on 10 September 2014 which was duly replied on 06 January 2015. The Leamed Conciliation Officer acting
under section 12 of the Industrial Disputes Act, 1947 having been satisfied with the response of HLV Limited, impleaded the Contractor and the Leamed
Congiliation Officer is seized of the matter for further submission of report to the appropriate Government against the Contractor enabling them to make
reference before the appropriate Industrial Tribunal under section 10 of the Industrial Disputes Act for appropriate award

After dismissal of the case before the Congiliation Officer, ex-cmployee filed the case before the Labour Court, Udaipur on 11 September 2017 making the same
claims against HLV Limited. The matter is pending hearing before the Labour Court, Udaipur

(if) The breakup of disputed statutory Jiabilities is as under:

As at

Particulars 31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Company in appeals

Value added tax * 8.22 13.11
GST** 1.31 -

* Department has Jevied value added tax on service tax component of invoices and demanded Rs 822 millions vide its order dated 09 March 2016 HLV Limited
filed an appeal against the said order before Additional Commissioner, Udaipur. In the order issued by additional commissioner dated 09 March 2016, the
penalty imposed by the assessing officer was set aside but levy of additional tax and interest was maintained. Against the order of additional commissioner, HLV

Limited filed an appeal before The Rajasthan Tax Board, Ajmer. The matter is pending for hearing. Against this Rs 3 23 millions is paid under protest.

** GST audit team has raised demand on HLVL vide ordes dated 28.12.2020 by disallowing the exemption (benefit of zero rated supply) claimed by hotel on
accomodation services provided to SEZ units alleging that since the services are provided outside the SEZ zone, exemption cannot be provided The Company
has filed an appeal before the appellate authority

(b) Commitments
Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed and not provided for (net of advances) amounts to Rs 21,84 millions (Previous Year: Rs Nil)

Expenditure in foreign currency (on payment basis) (Rupees in millions)

For the year ended For the year ended

Particulars 31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Legal and professional fees 0.28 -
Other expenses (advertisement fee, commission fee, sales and marketing fee, reservation fee etc.) 16.84 10.21

17.12 10.21 y
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3

h

(Rupees in millions)

Amount % of total
consumption

Amount % of total
cansumption

Particulars

Imported &
Indigenous 37.58 100.00% 28.47 100.00%
37.58 100.00% 28.47 100.00%

vValue of imports on CIF basis (Rupees in millions)

For the year ended
31 March 2021

For the year ended
31 March 2022

Particulars

Purchase of stores and operating supplies 1.34 0.38
1.34 0.38

Earnings per share
Eamings Per Share is calculated in accordance with Accounting Standard
Act, 2013

20 - 'Eamnings Per Share' - (AS-20) prescribed under Section 133 of the Companies

(Rupees in millions except per share data)
. For the year ended For the year ended
Particul

e 31 March 2022 31 March 2021

Loss after tax (152.79) (329.81)
Weighted Average Number of Equity Shares:
Considered in calculation of Basic EPS 51,07,142 40,25,553
Considered in calculation of Diluted EPS 51,07,142 40,25,553
Face value per Equity Share (Rupees) 10 10
Earnings Per Share (Rupees)
Basic (29.92) (81.93)
Diluted * (29.92) (81.93)

* As the impact of the CCDs was anti-dilutive, resulting in a decrease in loss per share from continuing ordinary activities, the effect thereof has been ignored

whilst calculating diluted eamings per share.

Related party disclosures

(a) Names of related parties

(i) Ultimate Holding company
BSREP 11 India Ballet Holdings (DIFC) Limited (w.e.f. 30 March 2022)
BSREP 111 India Ballet P1e, Lid. (upto 30 March 2022)

(ii) Holding company
Project Ballet Udaipur Holdings (DIFC) Private Limited (w.€ £ 30 March 2022)
BSREP 111 India Ballet 11 Pte. 14d. (upto 30 March 2022)

(iii) Fellow subsidiaries

Sehloss HMA Private Limited

Seliloss Bangalore Private Limited

Sehloss Chennai Private Limited

Schloss Chanakya Private Limited (1ill 30 March 2022)
Schloss Gandhinagar Privaie Limited

Leela Palaces and Resorts Limited

Tulsi Palace Resont Private Limited (w.¢ 3 May 2021)

(iv) Key managerial personnel

Mr. Gaurav Lodha, Finauicial Controller (wef 18 Qctober 2019 1o 09 October 2020)
M. Vikram Aditya Singh. General Manager (w.e.f 07 March 2020 1o 10 October 2020)
Mr. Vijaypal Singh, Financial Controller (w.e.f 02 November 2020)

Mr. Nishant Agarwal. General Manager (W.¢ {19 October 2020)

(v) Other related parties
Schloss Chanakya Private Limited (wef3l March 202%
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2022 (Continued)

(b) Transactions during the period

(Rupees in millions)

Particulars

For the year ended
31 March 2022

For the year ended
31 March 2021

Management fees expense
Schloss HMA Private Limited

Reimbursement of expenses paid to / (received from)
Schloss HMA Private Limited

Schloss Chennai Private Limited

Schloss Bangalore Private Limited

Schloss Chanakya Private Limited

Schloss Gandhinagar Private Limited

Tulsi Palace Resort Private Limited

Issuance of right issue shares (including securities premium)
BSRERP 11l India Ballet II Pte. Ltd

Inter corporate deposit given
Schloss Bangalore Private Limited
Schloss Chanakya Private Limited

Inter corporate deposit settlement
Schloss Bangalore Private Limited
Schloss Chanakya Private Limited

Interest on inter corporate deposit
Schloss Bangalore Private Limited
Schloss Chanakya Private Limited

Advance management fees given
Schloss HMA Private Limited

Advance management fees settled
Schloss HMA Private Limited

Interest on advance management fees
Schloss HMA Private Limited

Interest on 10.50% unsecured compulsorily convertible debentures
Project Ballet Udaipur Holdings (DIFC) Private Limited

Business support services
Schloss Gandhinagar Private Limited

Settlement in relation with business acquisition
Schloss Bangalore Private Limited

Managerial remuneration *
Mr. Gaurav Lodha

Mr. Vikram Aditya Singh
Mr. Nishant Agarwal

Mr. Vijaypal Singh

45.23

6.47
(0.02)
(0.56)
0.28
(0.31)
0.16

975.00
145,00

371.00
145,00

23.27
9.21

170.00

179.10

22.42

29.93

7.06
1.83

16.54

172.42

96.00
39.00

39.00

4.43
0.32

105.00

24,06

0.02

4.10

1.89
5.07
2.24
0.86

* Managerial remuneration excludes provision for gratuity and compensated absences, since these are provided on the basis of an actuarial valuation for the

Company as a whole
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Related party disclosures (Continued)

(c) Outstanding balances

Particulars ol oty
31 March 2022 31 March 2021

Trade payables (Including provisions)

Schloss HMA Private Limited 0.24 0.33

Tulsi Palace Resort Private Limited 0.26 -

Business support services

Schloss Gandhinagar Private Limited - 0.02

Settlement in relation with business acquisition

Schloss Bangalore Private Limited - 25.22

Inter corporate deposit given

Schloss Bangalore Private Limited 700.00 96.00

Advance for management fees

Schloss HMA Private Limited 71.84 80.94

Other advances given

Schloss Bangalore Private Limited 0.30 -

Interest accrued but not due on 10.50% unsecured compulsorily convertible debentures

Project Ballet Udaipur Holdings (DIFC) Private Limited 26.18 -

Interest Receivable on Inter corporate deposit

Schloss Bangalore Private Limited 0.43 4.10

Interest Receivable on advance management fees

Schloss HMA Private Limited 22.42 -

10.50% unsecured compulsorily convertible debentures

BSREP III India Ballet II Pte. Ltd - 285.00

Project Ballet Udaipur Holdings (DIFC) Private Limited 285.00 -

(d) Corporate guarantee

Company's fellow subsidiaries i.e. Schloss HMA Private Limited and Lecla Palaces and Resorts Limited and the ultimate holding company i.e. BSREP 1II India
Ballet Holdings (DIFC) Limited (from 31 March 2022) and BSREP 111 India Ballet Pte. Ltd. (upto 30 March 2022) have given corporate guarantee and fellow
subsidiaries also created charge over their total assets for the term loan facility availed by the company.

Employee benefits

(a) Defined contribution plan

The Company makes provident fund contributions to defined contribution plans for qualifying employees. Under the plan, the Company is required to contribute
a specified percentage of the payroll costs to fund the benefits, The contributions payable under these plans by the Company are at rates specified in the rules of
the schemes

The contributions are charged to the statement of profit and loss as they accrue. The amount as an expense towards contribution to provident fund and employees
state insurance for the period aggregated to Rs. 5.3 millions (Previous Year: Rs. 4.63 millions)

(b) Defined benefit plan

Gratuity:

The Company operates post-employment defined benefit plan that provides gratuity The Company has partly funded the defined benefit plan for eligible
employees. The scheme provides for lumpsuimn payment to eligible employees on retirement, death while in employment or on termination of employment, of an
amount equivalent to 15 days salary payable for each completed year of service or part thereof in excess of six months subject to a limit of Rs. 20 lakhs. The
unfunded portion as well as the amounts in excess of the limit are to be bome by the Company as per policy. Eligibility occurs upon completion of five years of
service

The present value of the defined benefit obligation and current service cost are measured using the projected unit credit method with actuarial valuations being
carried out at each balance sheet date.

The employees of HLVs Limited were eligible and covered under the existing Group Gratuity-cum-Life assurance policies administered through HLVs Limited,
Employee Group Gratuity Life Assurance Scheme. On 16 October 2019, the Company and HLV Limited has entered into a Business Transfer Agreement
("BTA") for acquisition of Udaipur hotel operations (the "Hotel") of HLVs Limited. Pursuant to BTA, there has been complete transfer of employment at the
Hotel to the Company and the continuity of services for every employee at the Hotel was conserved. Pending transfer of plan assets and obligations under the
existing policy of HLV Limited. Employee Group Gratuity Life Assurance Scheme to the new policy of Schloss Udaipur Private Limited as at the reporting date.
the Company has considered the fair value of plan assets and obligations pertaining to the transferred employees at the hotel as accumulated under the existing
policies for the purpose of actuarial valuatio%
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The following details summarises the position of assets and obligations relating to the gratuity plan:

(a) Changes in the present value of the defined benefits obligation

(Rupees in millions)

Particulars e .
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Present value of defined benefit obligation at beginning of the year 5.12 6.20
Acquisition adjustment - -
Interest cost 0.35 0.42
Current service cost 0.99 0.89
Benefits paid (0.19) 2.39)
Actuarial (gain)/ loss on obligation (1.31) (0.00)
Present value of defined benefit obligation at the end of the year 4.96 5.12
{b) Fair value of plan assets (Rupees in millions)

. As at As at
Particulars 31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Fair value of plan assets at the beginning of the year/period 3.37 4.93
Acquisition adjustment 1.05 -
Actuarial return on plan assets (0.50) 0.33
Employer contribution - 0.50
Benefits paid (0.19) (2.39)
Fair value of plan assets at the end of the year/period 3.73 3.37
Employee benefits (continued)

(c) Amounts recognised in the balance sheet (Rupees in millions)

. As at As at
§ gricuiar 31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Present value of defined benefit obligation at the end of the year 4.96 5.12
Fair value of plan assets at the end of the year 3.73 3.37
Liability to be recognised in the balance sheet 1.22 1.75
Recognised as:

Long-term provisions (Refer note 7) 1.16 1.69
Short-term provisions (Refer note 11) 0.06 0.06
(d) Movement in the liability recognized in the balance sheet (Rupees in millions)

. As at As at
il 31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Net liability at the beginning of the year 5.12 6.20
Expense recognised in the statement of profit and loss 0.53 0.98
Benefits paid (0.19) (2.39)
Actuarial retumn on plan assets (0.50) 0.33
Acquisition adjustment - -

4.96 5.12

Net liability at the end of the year

(e) Amounts recognised in the statement of profit and loss

(Rupees in millions)

For the year ended

For the year ended

Particulars 31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Current service cost 0.99 0.89
Interest cost 0.35 0.42
Expected return on plan assets (0.24) (0.35)
Net actuarial (gain)/ loss recognized in the year (0.57) 0.01
0.53 0.97

(f) Actuarial gain / loss on obligation (Rupees in millions)
Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Actuarial (gain) / loss arising from experience adjustment (1.01) (0.00)
Actuarial (gain) / loss on obligation (1.01) (0.00)

(g) Actuarial gain / loss on plan assets

(Rupees in millions)

Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
_Expected 'réti\rn«_).n\plan assets 0.24 0.35
~“Aciual reftim gn plapassets (0.50) 0.33
Actiarial gain l;!u:.f]%\\'l plan assets (0.74) (0.01)
P R ol
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(h) Actuarial assumptions (Rupees in millions)
Particulars o oy
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Discount rate 7.26% 6.76%
Expected retumn on plan assets 7.00% 6.76%
Expected rate of salary increase 7.00% 7.00%
Mortality rate 100% of JALM (2012-14) 100% ol IALM (2012-14)

The principal assumptions are the discount rate and salary growth rate. The discount rate is generally based upon the market yields available on government
bonds at the accounting date relevant to cutrency of benefit payments for a term that matches the liabilities. Salary growth rate is Company’s long-term best
estimate as to salary increases and takes into account the inflation, seniority, promotion, business plan, HR policies and other relevant factors on long-term basis
as provided in relevant accounting standard

Compensated absences:

The reversal of compensated absences (non-funded) for the year ended 31 March 2022 amounting to Rs.0.85 millions (Previous Year: Rs, 0.04 millions) has
been recognized in the statement of profit and loss, based on actuarial valuation carried out using Projected Unit Credit Method

Segment reporting

The Company’s only business being hoteliering, disclosure of segment-wise information is not applicable under Accounting Standard 17 - ‘Segment Information’
(AS-17) prescribed under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 There is no geographical segment to be reported since all the operations are undertaken in
India

Transfer pricing

The Company has established a comprehensive system of maintenance of information and documents as required by the transfer pricing legislation under
sections 92-92F of the Income-tax Act, 1961. Since the law requires existence of such information and documentation to be contemporaneous in nature, the
Company is in the process of updating the documentation for the international transactions entered into with the associated enterprises during the financial year,
The Company is required to update and put in place the infonnation latest by the due date of filing its income tax retum The management is of the opinion that
its international transactions are at arm’s length so that the aforesaid legislation will not have any impact on the financial statements, particularly on the amount
of tax expenses and that of provision for tax,

Management believes the Company's transactions with related parties are at arms length so that the aforesaid legislation will not have any impact on these
financial statements. particularly on the amount of tax expenses and that of provision for tax.

Unhedged foreign currency exposures as at the reporting date

Foreign currency exposures not hedged by derivative instruments are as follows:

Particulars As at 31 March 2022 As at 31 March 2021

Foreign currency Rupees in millions Foreign currency Rupees in millions
Foreign currency payables
- representing trade payables
USD - = = =
GBP - - - -

A Public Interest Litigation ("PIL") was filed by Gulab Kothari & Ors. ("Petitione1s") against State of Rajasthan & Ors ("Respondents") before the Hon'ble High
Court of Judicature of Rajasthan (Jodhpur), inter alia in relation to Lake Pichhola, wherein the petitioners have alleged violation of the Master Development Plan
by the development authorities and the State Government specifically in relation to the suo-moto amendment of the Master / Zonal Development Plan for
effecting a change in land use which was allegedly against the interest of the public. The said PIL was disposed off by the Hon'ble High Court in favour of
Petitioners. The order of the Hon'ble High Court has been appealed by the Respondents in the Hon'ble Supreme Court of India where the matter is pending

HLV Limited was not made a party to the above PIL or various other related cases being filed before the Hon'ble High Court of Judicature of Rajasthan
(Jodhpur). However, HLV Limited had not received approvals for construction/ modification/ alteration/ occupation of The Leela Udaipur Palace which may be
subject to outcome of the above mentioned pending appeal before the Hon'ble Supreme Court of India

In view of the Management, as HLV Limited was not made a party to any such litigation. the Company will continue to follow up with the Udaipur Municipal
Corporation on the pending application filed by HLV Limited for obtaining the requisite approvals and simultaneously continue to monitor the outcome of the
above mentioned pending appeal before the Hon'ble Supreme Court of India
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41 Ratio Analysis and its clemenis

Ratio Numerator Denominator 31st March 2022 | 31st March 2021 | % Change Remarks
Current Ratio Current Assels Current Liabilties excluding curren| 890 736 21%|Increase in curreni ratio is primanly on account of increase in cash
malunitics of long-lerm borrowings balance and Loans and advances
Dcbt Equity Ratio Non - Current Borrowings + Current| Total Equity (63.38) 4729 -234%| Reduclion in debl/equity ratio is primarily on accounl of increase
Borrowings in borrowings (GECL 3 1) and business losses during the year
Debt Service Coverage Ratio Profit before Tax + Interest (Net) +|Interest {Net) + Lease Paymenis + 102 041 148%|Increase in DSCR is on account of incrcase n EBITDA as
Depreciation  and  amortisationi|Principal Repayment ol Jong-term
expenscs Debi compared lo preyious year
Return on Equity Ratio Net Profit afier laxes Anxcrage Total Equity (2723) (2 05) 1227%| Decrease in retumn on cquity is primarly on account of busincss
losscs for the conseculive two years
Inventary Turnover Ratio Cost of Goods sold Axcrage Inventory 168 1.23 37%|Increase in invenlory turnover ralio is prumarily on account of
increase in busincss in current year as compared (o presious yvear
Lovwer business in preyions year on account of COVID
Trade Reccivables Turnoyer Ratio Renvenue [rom operations Aucrage Trade Receis ables 179.25 4219 325%|Increase in Trade Receivable Tumover ratio is primarily on
account of increase in revenue
Trade Payubles Turnover Ratio Nel Purchases Avcrage Trade Payables 080 069 16%|Increase in Trade Payable Tumozer ratio is primarily on accouni
of lower trade payables as compared lo previous year Trade|
pavables were higher in previous year on account of liquidity
issues due Lo COVID.
Net Capital Turnover Ratio Net Sales Average Working Capilal i ¢ Avcrage 061 078 -22%|Reduction in Nel Capital Turnover Ratio is primanly on account]
Current Assets - Ayeraee Current of increase in cash balance due lo GECL drandown
Net Profit Ratio Net Prolit aller tax Net Sales (024) (0.94) -75%|Increasc in Net profit ralio is primarth on account of increasc in|
revenue and lower losses as compared (o preisous year
Return on Capital empleyed EBIT Captal Employed 002 0 on -315%|Increase in ratio is pnmarily on account of (1) ncrease n EBITDA/

duc 1o better business: and (ii) increase 1n capital employcd

* The Company has not presented the following ratios due to the reasons gisen below:
a Retumn on iny estments: since the Company docs not holds any funds/iny estment

42 Transaction with Struck off Companics

The Company has reviewed transactions to ideniify if there arc any transaclions with struck ofT companics. To the extent information is available on struck off’

there are no Ir

wilh struck ofT companies

43 With reference lo Schedule 5 - Borrowings of financial statements For the year ended 31 March 2022. we confirm that all charges crealed/ satisfied during FY 2021-22 have been regisiered with the Ministry of Corporate Affairs within

statutory duc dale

44 The Company has not advanced or loancd or invested (cither from borrowed funds or sharc premium or any other sources or kind of funds) any funds. that have been to or in amy other persons or enlitics. including forcign entitics
( Intermediarics™). wilh the undersianding. whether recorded in writing or otherwise. that the Inicrmediary shall:
a dirccth o indircetly lend or invest in other persons or enlities identificd in ans manncr w hatsoes er (“Ultimaie Beneficiaries™) by or on behalf of the Company or
b. provide any guarantec. security or the like to or on behalf of the Ullimate Beneficiaries

45 The Company has not receised any funds from any persons or entitics. including forcign entities (“Funding Partics™). with the understanding, whether recorded in wriling or otherwise, thal the Company shall
iarics) by or on behalf of the Funding Party or;

a dircctly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or cntitics identified in any manner

er (“Ultimate B

b provide any guarantce, securily or the like from or on behall of the Ullimate Bencficiaries

The notes referred to aboyc form an integral part of the [inancial statements
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